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and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures" ("the Franchise 

Rule" or "the Rule"), 16 C.F.R. Part 436. The parties to this action agree to settlement of this 

action without adjudication of any issue of fact or law and without the Defendant admitting 

liability for any of the violations alleged in the complaint. 

THEREFORE, on the joint motion of the parties, it is hereby ORDERED, ADJUDGED 

and DECREED as 



People"). 

2. "Person" means a natural person or a corporation, partnership, proprietorship, or other 

organization or legal entity, including an association, cooperative, or agency, or other group or 

combination acting as an entity. 

3. "Franchise Rule" or "Rule" means the FTC Trade Regulation Rule entitled "Disclosure 

Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures," 

16 C.F.R. Part 436, as promulgated or as the Rule may hereafter be amended. 

4. "Franchise" and "franchisor" are defined as those terms are defined in Sections 436.2(a) 

and (c) of the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. $ 5  436.2(a) and (c), and include "business opportunity 

ventures" as set forth at 16 C.F.R. $ 5  436.2(a)(l)(ii) and (2), and discussed in the FTC's Final 

hterpretive Guide for the Franchise Rule, 44 Fed. Reg. 49,966 (August 24, 1979). The term 

'franchise" in this Order shall encompass any successor definition of the term "franchise" or 

'business opportunity" in any future trade regulation rule or rules that may be promulgated by the 

Zommission to modify or supersede the Franchise Rule, in whole or in part, from the date any suc 

a l e  takes effect. 

). "UFOC format" is defined as the Uniform Franchise Offering Circular disclosure format 

.hat has been adopted by the North American Securities Administrators' Association and accepted 

3y the Commission for use in lieu of the Franchise 



436.1(a)(l)-(24) of the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. $ 5  436.1(a)(l)-(24), in the 

manner and within the times specified in the Franchise Rule; provided, however, 

that Defendant may choose to comply with the disclosure requirements of the 

Franchise Rule by fully and completely complying with the disclosure requirement 

set forth in the UFOC format. If the Defendant chooses to comply with the 

Franchise Rule by using the UFOC format, Defendant is hereby permanently 

enjoined from failing to comply with any provision of the UFOC. In the event the 

Franchise Rule is hereafter amended or modified, or the UFOC is amended or 

modified and any such UFOC amendment or modification is accepted by the 

Commission for use in lieu of the Franchise Rule's disclosure format, then 

Defendant's compliance with the Franchise Rule as so amended or modified, or thc 

UFOC as so amended or modified and accepted by the Commission, shall not be 

deemed a violation of this Order. 

B. Failing to prepare, within a reasonable time after the close of each quarter of the 

fiscal year, any revisions to be attached to the disclosure document to reflect any 

material change in the franchisor or relating to the franchise business, as is requirec 

by 16 C.F.R. 9 436.l(a)(22). 

COMPLIANCE TRAINING 

11. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that before Defendant may offer for sale any franchise, it 

nust first participate in the franchise compliance education program sponsored by the Internationa 

7ranchise Association ("FA"), or comparable program approved by the Commission, at its own 

:xpense. 
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or assisting others in violating, any provision of the FTC Act or the Franchise Rule, 16 C.F.R. Par 

436, as promulgated or as it may hereinafter be amended, including, but not limited to: 

A. Failing to provide any prospective franchisee with a complete and accurate 

disclosure document containing all of the information required under Sections 
I 



CIVIL PENALTY 

111. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDEmD that judgment in the amount of $286,000 is hereby enterec 

against Defendant as a civil penalty, pursuant to Section 5(m)(l)(A) of the Federal Trade 

Commission Act, 15 U.S.C. 5 45(m)(l)(A). 

A. Defendant shall pay the civil penalty according to the following schedule. Prior to 

or concurrently with its execution of this Order, Defendant shall turn over $50,000 to its attorney, 

who shall hold this sum for no purpose other than payment to the Treasurer of the United States 

after entry of this Order by the Court. Within five ( 5 )  days of receipt of notice of the entry of this 

Order, Defendant's attorney shall transfer the $50,000 in the form of a wire transfer or certified or 

cashier's check made payable to the Treasurer of the United States. The check or written 

confirmation of the wire transfer shall be delivered to: Director, Office of Consumer Litigation, 

U.S. Department of Justice Civil Division, P.O. Box 386, Washington, DC 20044. The cover 

letter accompanying the check shall include the title of this litigation and a reference to 

DJ# 102-3235. 

B. Defendant shall pay an additional $50,000 within 90 days of entry of this Order; 

$50,000 within 180 days of entry of this Order; $50,000 within 270 days of entry of this Order; 

and the balance of $86,000 within 360 days of entry of this Order. Each payment shall be paid to 

the Treasurer of the United States in the form of a wire transfer or certified or cashier's check 

made payable to the Treasurer of the United States, as set forth in section A of this Paragraph. 

C. In the event of default on any payment required to be made by this Paragraph, the 

entire unpaid civil penalty, together with interest computed under 28 U.S.C. 5 1961 -- accrued 

from the date of default until the date of payment -- shall be immediately due and payable. 

Defendant agrees that, in such event, the facts as alleged in the complaint filed in this action shall 

be taken as true in any subsequent litigation filed by Plaintiff or the Commission to enforce their 

rights pursuant to this Order, including but not limited to a nondischargeability complaint in any 

subsequent bankruptcy proceeding. 
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D. Defendant shall cooperate fully with Plaintiff and the Commission and their agents 

in all attempts to collect any amount due pursuant to this Paragraph if Defendant fails 



2. posing as consumers and suppliers to We The People, We The People 

employees, or any entity managed or controlled in whole or in part by We 

The People, without the necessity of identification or prior notice; 

C. Defendant shall permit representatives of the Commission or Plaintiff to interview 

any employer, consultant, independent contractor, representative, agent, or employee who has 

agreed to such an interview, relating in any way to any conduct subject to this Order. The person 

interviewed may have counsel present. Provided, however, that nothing in this Order shall limit 

the Commission's or Plaintiffs lawful use of compulsory process, pursuant to Sections 9 and 20 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 5  49, 57b-1, to obtain any documentary material, tangible things, 

testimony, or information relevant to unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce 

(within the meaning of 15 U.S.C. $ 45(a)(l)). 

COMPLIANCE REPORTING BY DEFENDANT 

v. 
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, in order that compliance with the provisions of this 

Order may be monitored: 

A. For a period of three (3) years from the date of entry of this Order, We The People 

shall notify the Commission of any changes in corporate structure that may affect 

compliance obligations arising under this Order, including but not limited to a 

dissolution, assignment, sale, merger, or other action that would result in the 

emergence of a successor corporation; the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary, 

parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject to this Order; the 

filing of a bankruptcy petition; or a change in the corporate name or address, at 

least thirty (30) days prior to such change, provided that, with respect to any 

proposed change in the corporation about which the Defendant learns less than 

thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, Defendant shall notify 

the Commission as soon as is practicable after obtaining such knowledge. 

B. One hundred eighty (1 80) days after the date of entry of this Order, We The People 
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shall provide a written report to the FTC, sworn to under penalty of perjury, setting 

forth in detail the manner and form in which they have complied and are complyinl 

with this Order. This report shall include, but not be limited to: 

1. Any changes required to be reported pursuant to subparagraph (A) above; 

2. A copy of each acknowledgment of receipt of this Order obtained by 

Defendant pursuant to Paragraph VII below; 

3. A statement describing the manner in which the Defendant has complied an 

is complying with the provisions of this Order requiring the dissemination 

of complete and accurate disclosure documents in the offering for sale or 

sale of franchises or business opportunity ventures; and 

C. For the purposes of this Order, Defendant shall, unless otherwise directed by the 

Commission's authorized representatives, mail all written notifications to the 

Commission to: 

Associate Director for Marketing Practices 
Federal Trade Commission 
Room 238 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW 
Washington, D.C. 20580 
Re: U.S. v. We The People 

D. For the purposes of this Order, Defendant shall, unless otherwise directed by a 

representative of Plaintiff, identify all written notifications to Plaintiff as provided 

in reference to DJ# 102-3235, and mail them to: 

Director, Office of Consumer Litigation 
U.S. Department of Justice - Civil Division 
P.O. Box 386 
Washington, DC 20044. 

E. For purposes of the compliance reporting and monitoring required by this Order, 

representatives of Plaintiff and the Commission are authorized to communicate 

directly with officers of Defendant. 
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RECORD KEEPING PROVISIONS 

VI. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of six (6) years from the date of entry of 

this Order, in connection with the offering for sale of franchises and business opportunity venturer 

Defendant, as well as any of its principals, officers, directors, managers, subsidiaries, successors, 

and assigns, and those employees, agents, representatives and other persons under its control who 

engage in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order, and who receive actual notice of this 

Order by personal service or otherwise, are hereby restrained and enjoined from failing to create 

and retain the following records: 

Accounting records that reflect the costs and revenues generated from the sale of 

franchises and business opportunity ventures; 

Personnel records accurately reflecting: the name, address, and telephone number 

of each person employed in any capacity by such business, including as an 

independent contractor; that person's job title or position; the date upon which the 

person commenced work; and the date and reason for the person's termination, if 

applicable; 

Customer files containing the names, addresses, phone 



G. All records and documents necessary to demonstrate full compliance with each 

provision of this Order, including but not limited to, copies of signed and dated 

acknowledgments of receipt of this order, required by Paragraph VII of this Order, 

and all reports submitted to the FTC pursuant to Paragraphs IV and V; 

DISTRIBUTION OF ORDER BY DEFENDANT 

VII. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of three (3) years from the date of entry c 

this Order, Defendant shall (a) deliver copies of this Order to all of its principals, officers, 

directors and managers and (b) deliver a copy of this Order to all of its employees, agents, and 

representatives under its control who engage in conduct related to the subject matter of this Order. 

For 



RETENTION OF JURISDICTION 

IX. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for 

purposes of construction, modification and enforcement of this Order. Each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorneys fees. 

JUDGMENT IS THEREFORE ENTERED in favor of plaintiff and against Defendant, 

pursuant to all the terms and conditions recited above. 

Dated this day of ,2004. 

United States District Judge 
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The parties, by their respective counsel, hereby consent to the terms and conditions of this 
Stipulated Order as set forth above and consent to the entry thereof. 

DATED: 

Defendant: 



PLAINTIFF: 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA: 

OF COUNSEL: 
EILEEN HARRINGTON 
Associate Director for 
Marketing Practices 





I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that the 

foregoing is true and correct. Executed on 200[ 1, at 

(city), [state]. 

[Full name of Defendant] 
Authorized Representative of 
We The People Forms and Service Centers 
USA, Inc. 

State of , City of 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 
this day of , 200 - . 

Notary Public 
My Commission Expires: 
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